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SE(__:U—RITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
- Plaingit,

o | -against- - E | - E , | | ) -i_?

. THE HOCKEY BARN LLC and . 07.cv 0438 '_

" JEFFREY J. COLEMAN, . e T

Defendants.

COMPLAINT
Plaintiff Secuﬁties and Exchange Commission {the “Cbmmission”)_bn'ngs this acﬁqn
agamnst Defendants The Hockey Barn LLC (“Hockey Barn’_’) and Jeffrey J. Coleman (‘;Coierhan?’) g
.(collectively, the “Defendants”). The 'Commission allegeé the following: | -
1. From approximately October 2006 through the preseht, rth_e Defer.ldants- ha\}e
defranded investors thfough an offering of phony promissbry notes and other inglestmént
contraéts. Among other things, Coleman, the Cilief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of Hdckey‘ B;mi, '
ma(ie mafcrial rhisrepresentations‘ to investors concerning the returns that would be obtained -
from an investment in a purported bond trading program.
| 2. Hockey Barn purported to be a devéloper of hockey facilities ih New Y(')rk,‘_ ,
| F loﬁda, and other states. As part of his ﬁrat:ﬁ, Colemaﬁ falsely told prospective invesfors that the_l | _
investrﬁcnts he was offering were to-réise financing toward Hockey Bam’s‘purportéd business
| goals. |

3. Coleman falsely told certain investors that Coleman and/or Hockey Barn would




_ use 'th.ei-rs and others’ inﬁe:;ted funds to trade bonds, and that this trading progr‘am lwo,uld produce |

ret-ﬁms of at leasf- 40b% \x;'ith_in 60;days._ For e;;ami:;}e, m or about J anuary 2-007, Coleman faléely 7

. toIdr an approxirﬁgtely 65 year old woman {(“Investor 17}, that his purported “war bohd” trading
.prc)grain w'ould genera‘-‘te. returns of appfoximafely 400% within ,60..c'iays- Investor } then gave |

‘Coleman $25,000 as an investrent in that purported program. In Apri1‘20‘07, juét before ﬂyi.ﬁg o
- . ) e e v 2

-
"

to Italy, Coleman issued Investor 1 a $25—,000 personal check, which subsequéﬁtly’ bounced.

investor I’s son fequgsted Col'erna'r; to retumn his rﬁothef’s-investrhent, but neithi_a_r Coleman nor
the Hdcl_cey Barn re@ed any mtme&' to ,Investof 1. .
4; In 6: about Decerﬁber 2006, Colemaﬁ solicited a ﬁjend (“Invééfor 3”) to invest in
* what he called a “paper purchase.” Coleman falsely told Investor 3 thaf he pIanhéd to pool $1
million from ; group of nvestors to purchase bonds from the U.S.--Govél.mnent and then sell the
- bonds back t6 -thré government after 60 days. Coleman falsely told Investor 3 that a $100,000
invesltrgerit rwould: generate returms of betnﬁreeﬁ $450;_000,a1.1d $550,000 (450% to 550%). Inves£br
3 agreed to make two invé'stmenté totaling $225,000. To date, Investor 3 has not recei\_fediany of
~ the promiséd: rétums on his investment, and Coleman has not refunded Investor 3’s original
invésﬁnént.

5 o Hbckey Barn and Cole_man have made_sir-nilar'-mateﬁal misrépresentations toat

least four investors, who together have invested a total of at leést $390,000-

, - VIOLATIONS

6. Through this conduct, and that detailed b'elow, Defendants violated Sectid_n 17(a)y |
of the Securities Ac_t' of 1933 (“Sfc_c'urities Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a), and Section IO(b) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934.(“Exchang§ Act”), 15 U.S.C: § 78j(b), and RuIe 10b-5




- thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.

 JURISDICTION

7. The CoMission brings ﬂ}js action pﬁrsuént tb aufhority confened by Secti’oh _
20(b) of the Secxmtles Act, 15 U S.C. § 77(b), and Sectlon Zl(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S! (o

§ 78u(d) seekmg to temporanly restraln prehmmanly enjoin, and permanently enjoin. the. ‘

3
_ Defendants from engagmg in the wrongful conduct alleged in this complaint. In addltlon }the

‘Commission seeks a final judgment ordenng thc Defel_ldants'lo disgorge their Ill-gqtten. ggms,, to
pay i)rejudgrnent interest the_reén and f§ I;_ay civil money penaltics pursuant to Section 20,((1) of ..

the Sg:cun'ﬁes Acf, 15U.S.C.. §' 77£(d), and Séction 21(d) ‘.of the Exchange Act, 15 US.C. §

781;(d). The Coinmission also seeks temporaril)f, aﬁd during the pendency of thisr acﬁon, an order
, -ﬁeezing the Defendants’ assets, énd an ofder diré_cting .th-e. Defendants fo _pr_ovide veﬁﬁed
accountings. Additionally, the Comfnissiﬁﬁ seeks an order directing the Dgféndants to providf;
éxpedited diéqovery and prohibiting the destructién, alteration, or.concealment of doc'uments. ‘
Finally, the Commissioﬁ seeks ali oth.ei' just ﬁnd appropriate relief 5

' '8-l This Court has jurisdiction over thls acﬁon pursuant to Section 22(&) of the
| Securities Act 15U.8.C. § T7v(a), and: ‘Sections 21(d) 21(&) and 27 of the Exchange Act, 15
‘ U.S.C__. §§ 78u{d), 77u(e) and 78aa. |
| : 9.7 Ve_:nuellies. in this district pu_xsu%mt to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act,-._l 3

- U.S.C. § 77v(a), and Section 27 of the Exehange Act 15US.C. §-78aa. Certain of the
transactions, -aéts, practices and courses bf Bﬁsiness co.nstituting' the violations alleged herein
_ occunéd withiﬁ the Western District of New York. For eﬁcainple, i{ockey Barn is located in

Ambherst, New York. .




IO. . The -Defendants,_-;iirectiy or indiréctly, singly-of in concert, haye niade.use of fhe .
means or rinstrmhentélities of trﬁnsportation or éonu’nﬁniéation n, or fhe instnunéntaliﬁes of, ~
- interstate commerce, or of the mails, in connection With the transactions, acts,_pracﬁ'ce_é, an.d.
courses ‘of- t.)usiliesé.alleged in thls complaint. |

DEFENDANTS

. o

11. * Hockey Barn is a New York lunited hability company. The address Iistetbfof’%

' service of process on the New York State Department of State, Division of Corporations, website

1s 266 ]Jﬁpcri-al ‘Drive,-A-mherst, New York | 14226. The Hockey Bam"LLC does not haVe. |

: sectiﬁties fegisfere_d- vﬁth_ the Commission. |

12. | Cpleman, age_28, isa reéideﬁt of East Amherst, New York. Coleman is the CEO
: of Hockey Bam. | |

FACTS

Hoék'ev Ball'n‘and Coleman Solicited Investors

13. By the fall of 2006, Coleman had beguﬁ tolsolicit investors in the Hockey Bam.

114,' - ' C.c;leman told investdrs that the Hockey Barn was going to develop hockey |
facilities in New 'Yérk; Florida, and o'thér states. |

15. Irl-Ngjvember 2006, Coleman solicited a 70-year old man (“Investo; 27) to i’nvést '
in ;‘T-he Bafn.” C_dlemaﬁ told Investor 2 that the minimum investment in the Hockey Barmn was
$'100,000; 'a:t_ld that it Wou‘ld i)rovide a50% retﬁm within 60 days. Colernaﬁ described his
bhported pl@s for the Hockey Barn to Investor 2. Coleman also falsely told Investor 2 that the
lB'uffzilq Sabres pro,fessi@hal hockey club was interested in u_sing the Hockejr Bam as a practicé '

facility. Further, Coleman félsely told Investor 2 that the Coca-Cola Company was interested in




buying th'é: facility in three.‘to fOI:;r y,eéfs 1o compete ‘;ﬁ}ifh the Pepsi Center (an ice facility irn the
- Buffalo areaj_. A}though Investor 2 responded fhaI he only could invesf $40,000, quémén agreed
to accept the invcstlneﬁt. | | |
16. I_nilgstor 2'il11veste.d a total of $40,_000 by two separate investménté ;)f $-20,.000
each (one in NO\-iCmbBI' and the second in carly Decembcr 2006}, and_h-e‘ recgivn_éd purported

A
promissory notes. from Coleman in return (one in Coleman’s name and one in the name of

 Coleman/The Hockey Bam).
17. In late 2006, Coierhan falsely tol& other poten'ti;eﬂ investors that. if théy invested
'$100,000, he would use their 1nvestments plus the proceeds from a bond tradmg program that
Hockey Barn would carry out, to bulld hockey facilities. |
18.  For example, in or about December 2006, Coleman solicited a friend:(“Investor :
3% to invesi in a “paper purchas_é.” Coleman falsely told Iﬁvestor 3 that he planned to pool 31
million from a group of investors to purchase bonds from the U.S. Government and then sell the
bonds back to the goveminent after 60 days. Colémaﬁ falsely told Invest0r.3 that a $100,000
invesﬁl;ent would generate returns of between $450,000 and $55(},OOO (450% to 55‘0%)-
19.  In December 2006, Investor 3 agreed to invest $125,000 with Coleman, and he
made the investtﬁént witﬁ a check pgjable to Coleman and thg Hockey Bam
20.  Shortly after Investor 3’3 investment, Coleman falsely told Investor 3 that the
“first roll” of the paper i)u:rchase had gone throﬁgh,and that 1t was paying' an even higher rate of
return than expected. Fuﬁher, -Coieman falsely said that he and his group of investors planned to
‘execute a “second roll.” I.IIYé.S-tOi'.?) agreed to ihw}esf an additional $100,000 with Coleﬁm for the

: “se_bond roll.




21 Coleman provided Investor 3 w1th a purported prornlssory fnote, whlch Colernan
si gued (above a signature line for the. maker as “J effrey Coleman/The Barn ”) to secure Investor
3’s investment pnncrpal. |
- 22 In _addition, after Investor 3 made his inrfesirnents, Colenlén proVided_Irl_Veetor_ 3

with two documents entitled.-‘-‘Memoranduni of 'Undersranding'regarding Paper Purchase”-gnat‘r |

purportedly memonahzed a group of mvestors’ (mcludmg Investor 3’s) respective * ownershlp 1n- "
_units of the paper purchase For example one undated Memorandum of Understandlng sets our -'
an  allocation of ownership in units of t_he-paper pnrch_ase to six mvestorsz including Colenlan andi
' .InvestorS. Tne Memorandum of Understanciing, states that this group oWns"iOr% of tne paper |
f)urchase.
| 23. . The Memorandum of Understanding further falsely srates that “[:ejaeh Uni’r_‘i}rolder
will receive $550,000 of total monies retnrned per umt for the first roll of the paper ptlrchase;”
and rhat “Imjonies will be wired into each particularl.indi.viduals {(sic) selected, Bank eceounr by
'-February 23, 2007 » | |
24. F mally, the Memorandum of Understandmg regardrng the first roll falsely States
't.hat “[a] total profit was made of $7,865,000” and th_at the investment g;roup “controls 70% of |
| that profit totalrng $6,050,000.” | | |
25.  Investor 3 introdnced a friend of .hisi(“hn-}estor 4;’) to Colernan. In or around.
January 2007, Invesror 4 rnvested $100,000 with (ll'ole_man.in the purported “paper purt:haeef’ _
‘ referenced above. |
| 26. In early 2007, Coleman _solieited Irivestor 1 and her son. When deseﬁbing the |

purported bond trading program to Investor 17s son, Colemé.n'falsely claimed he would purchascé




- govefnment—backedj gﬂaraﬁtéed/secured war bonds and trade the bonds eacﬁ_ day for 30 days _unti'l'.
thé_bonds- were paid,fdr. Coleman falsely said that he‘W0uld then sell _tﬁe bpnds and purchase | _ 8
more bonds t§ tradej' which would gene’fate profits for the Hockey Barn. Colémaﬁ,again .
described this investment as a “paper purchase.” Fmﬁér, Colemail falsely t;ald In_veétor_ i’s son

that the bond trading program would generate returns of approximately 400% within 60 da‘ys'_ of .

e

-

 the investment. |
27.  InJ aﬁuary 2007, Investor 1 agréed to invést $25,0001in tﬁe paper purchaég
28.  To date, none of these invéstors hzive ob;:ained any retum on thei; invesmeﬁts,
~much less their. promised returﬁs, even thoughrthe time frame for obfaining their rei_fufns has
expired (e.g., 60 days). |
29 Consequently, Investors 1, 2,3, and 4 each have asked Co]eman for the return .of
- their investments, and Coleman has promised éaoh that he will return the ﬁonéy to them.
30. . Forexample, in Aprﬂ'ZOO?; right before Coleman left for a trip to Italy, Coleni_an
gave Investor 1°s son a personal check for $25,000, the amount of her initial investment, dated
‘ April_ i2, 2007, éqleman’s check to Investor 1 -bounc_:ed. ‘On behalf of his mé)_ther, Investor 1";
son requéstcd the r_etum of Investq'r I’s investment, but Investor 1 has not received any money
ﬂom'either’ Colemén'or the H(;ckey Bamn. | | |
31.  Additionally, in an email dated May 18, 200’7, to“J emifer,” Coleman suggcsted'
that the papér purchase had not 'occurred;_and that he had a mess én his héﬁds. Coléman falsély
wrote as‘follows: | | |
.I have the cépabﬂzty to repay the deposits and interest to all pames [ am getting
the available funds from another investment that I have just completed in Italy. If
I can receive the document I can then finish the mess that this investment put me

in because of the complications. I am now moving forward with many other
projects as well as the Hockey Bamn in Rochester so I will need you alot [sic] over

7




the next month.
32, -- '. Désp’ite these pr_omisés, neither‘ Coleﬁiﬁn nor the Hobkey'Bam haé refuméd any.
' mmi(ey to Investors 71, 2,3, 0r 4 |
33. | Covleman and the Hockey Barn sold invesﬁnent contracts and -prbmissory notés to

. Investors 1,2, 3, and 4, and they were securitiés.

-
.

Hockey Barn’s and Coleman’s Representations Were False
34. - The representations described in this complaint that Coleman made to solicit.
investors were false, and Coleman r;iadc each of the false é{atements either knowingly or

5

: reckles’slji

| 35 -Colgman’s‘st'atements concerning the returns on an investment in fhe “paper
' puréha_.'s?” or b;:)nd trading program i;srould genératé were completely unfounded aﬁd otherwise
f'alse.'
36. Colemah’s representaﬁons tb the Investors were similar tb those made mn
'-investment. schemes that the Comrnissio_n, the Federal Relsérve Bank of New York, and the
VF ederal Bureau of Investigations have wained the public about. For example, all three agencies
have highlighted thaf frauduient scams promising éxtremely high retumns are oftz_ap called “roll
prbgréms.” Sinlilarly, Coleman described the“‘paper_purcﬁase” as “rolls™ to certain inve'sto;rs. :
- 37, In ;1_dditibn, Coleman’s statements t?) ﬂm Investors regarding Hockey Barn’s
‘pmpc_arted plans to build hockey facilities were without aﬁy reasonable basis in fact ax_id otherwise .-
: false. Coleman has not taken ény signiﬁcant steps to build c;r develop any hockey facilities.
38. - Further, contrary to Céleman’s_ ref)resentatioﬁs, the Buffalo Sabres never

committed to using a2 Hockey Bam facility.




. 39, Finally, the Coca Cola Company never agreed to purchdse a Hockey Bam facili"t_jr.' o

' FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIER
~ Violations of Section 17 (a_) of the Securities Acf, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a),
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b),
and Rule 10b-5 thereu_nder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5

40. . _The_ Commission repeats and realleges the él’-lega_tions contained in par'agraféhs\il_‘v,

B

, _-thmu’gh 39 by.'refér.ence as if fully set forth herein. .. .
41,  The Defendan-ts, direétly and indirectly, singly and in concert, knowingly or
r,ecklesslj}, by the use of thé Iﬁeans or instniments of transportation or com‘mﬁnicaﬁou in, and the
means or instl'lnneﬁtalities of, interstaterconnherc.e, or by the use of the mailsl, in the offer or séle,
andin coﬁnectioﬁ with the purchaééj or sale, of securities, have: ta) employedic.ievicesr, schemes or

arti.ﬁ-ces‘ to déﬁaud; ) obtained monéy or property by means of, or otherwise made un_tr-ue
.statements of material fact, or omitted to state matertal facts ne(-:essary to make the stater_ﬁents, n
light of the 'circum.stances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in
transactions, acts, practices and courses of business whicilloperated or would operate as a fraud
or deceit ﬁpon purchasers of securities or other persons. |

42.  As part, and in furtherance, of this violative conduct, tﬁe Defendént's conducted ;i
fraudulent scheme to raise money from inveﬁtors, and madé mistepresentations déscﬁbe,d abo’vé,
to investors. |

| 43, The Déféndanté’_ mié_representations wete _rﬁaterial.

44. | The Defendants knew, or weré reckless in not knowing, that these ‘material

misrepreseﬁtations were 'félse or. misllea‘d'ing.

45. By reason of the acts, omissions, practices, and courses of business set forth in

9




~ this COII’):pIai-I;lt, the Defeﬁdants have {?io’lated,‘ are violéti’ng, and unless restrained and enjoined,
will continue to violate, Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a), Section 10(b) of

the Exchange Act, 15U.8.C. § 78i(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5. .

~ PRAYER FOR RELIEF

| WHEREFORE Pia_inj:iff CoMission respectfully requests that thisCoﬁrt 'issﬁe: |
: o .
Orders temporzirilyr-and'-preliﬁainarily, and Final Judgments permanently, :estraining and.
enjoiﬁing 'the Defendants, their agénts;_éervants, exhployées, attbrneyﬁ n-fact, and all persons in
' éctive cbnceﬁ or partilci‘.pation w1th theﬁn who receive actl;al notia;, of the injunction by per_so'nal a
service or oiherwise, an& eachl'o-f them, frbnﬁ viblatin’g Section 17(a) of the Sécurities Act, 15
_U.S.c. § 77q(2), Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5
‘thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240..'1.0b-‘_5. ‘, ) | |
| | Il

An Order directing the Defendants, and their financial and brokerage institutions, agent.s,-
servants, employeeé, attomeys—in-fa(':t',. and those persons in active concert or participation with
them who receive actual notice of such Order by personal service, facsfmile s_erﬁce-, or otherwise?
.t(l). hold and retain witlﬁn their controi, and 6ﬂ1¢rwise prevent, any withdrawal, transfer, pledge;
~ encumbrance, éssiémnent, dissipatibn, concealmenf of other disp;)sal of any assets, funds, or |
other proﬁe_rﬁy (including money, real or personal property, s_ecuritiés, commodities, chose's.in _
‘action or other prop_erlty.of any kind whatsoever) Qf, held by, or under the co_nt-rol‘of the o
‘Defendants, whether held in their names or for their direct or indirect beneficial intcrést Whereve_r

situated.

10




oL
. AnOrder directing the Defendants to each file with this Court and serve upon the

Commission verified written accountings, signed by each of them under penalty of perjury.

V.
| An Order permitting expedited discovéry. ' ' SRR
_ v - 7 <

An Order énj oining and restrainjng‘_ ﬁie Defendants, and any person or éntity acting at
their directioh or én their ﬁehélﬁ ﬁomdéstr;)ying, gtltering,_conce_aling, of otherwise interfering
~with the aé(:eés of the Coinmission to:rélevanf_ docuﬁlelllts,.bo.oks and records.

Vi
A Fitqal Judgment requiring fhe Defendénts'to.disgorge their ill'—goften gains from the
" violative conduct alleged in this complaint,rand td pay prejudgment interest thereon. |
VIL |

A Final Judgment imposing civil monetary penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the

 Securities Act, 15 U.S.C; § ‘”/.’7t(d), and Section 21(d)(3) of the Excha.ﬁgé Act, 15 U.S.C.

© § 78u(d), against the Defendants.

11




VIIL

Such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

Dated: July 3, 2007 .
New York, New York

. Respectfully Submitted,

- Mark K. Schonfeld

'Of Counsel:

Kay L. Lackey {not admitted in New York)
Jack Kaufman

~ Paul G. Gizzi

Amelia A. Cottrell

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINT IFF

SECURITIES. AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
New York Regional Office

3 World Financial Center.

New York, New York 10281

' (212) 336- 1020
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